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FINANCIAL SECTION 



Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS I CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors, 
Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities and 

Prime Time Family Reading, 
New Orleans, Louisiana. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Louisiana 
Endowment for the Humanities and Prime Time Family Reading, (a nonprofit organization) (the 
"Organization"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of October 31, 
2024, and the related consolidated statement of activities, consolidated statement of functional 
expenses, and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to 
the consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Organization as of October 31, 2024, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are ftirther described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the 
Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the consolidated financial stateinents, management is required to evaluate 
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 
the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the 
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Stateinents 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free frorn rnaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect 
a rnaterial misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting froin error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgely, 
intentional omissions, nlisrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered rnaterial if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Governrnent Auditing Standards. we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material inisstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include exarnining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, hut not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made bv inanageinent, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as 
a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control related matters that we identified during the audit. 



Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Organization's October 31, 2()23 consolidated financial 
statements, and our report dated April 19, 2024 expressed an unmodified opinion, on those 
consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the suininarized comparative information 
presented herein, as of and for the year ended October 31, 2023, is consistent, in all material 
respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Matters 

Other h?fimnation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required 
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniforin Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such inforination is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including coinparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial 
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole. 

Supplementag Itybrmation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated tinancial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplemental information (Schedule 1) is presented for 
the purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic consolidated financial 
statements. The Schedule of Compensation, Benefits. and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief 
Executive Officer (Schedule 2) is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is required by 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513(A)(3) and is not a required part of the consolidated financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves. and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all inaterial respects in relation 
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Requirements by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
April 25. 2025, on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of this report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance with the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

/ ¿Le. 6 "744'.X34"1  
Certified Public Accountants. 

New Orleans. Louisiana, 
April 25, 2025. 
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Exhibit A 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

October 31, 101 4 
(with comparative totals for 2023) 

ASSETS 

 

2024 2M23 

Assets 

  

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,061,217 $ 1,391,831 
Accounts receivable, net 72,954 59,237 
Grants receivable 373,686 7£5,=137 
Unconditional promises to give, net 

 

314,049 
Inventory 12,780 

 

investments 4,430,073 3,500,087 
Prepaid expense 148,706 184,597 
Right-of-use of leased assets 87,272 371,259 
Property and equipment, net 8,749,890 7,096,475 
Art collections 358,151 356,816 

Total assets $15.294.830 $14.059.788 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

  

Liabilities 

  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,327,965 $ 1,385,983 
Deposits 7,750 7,750 
Note payable 233.587 233.594 
Lease liability 87,272 371,259 
Unearned revenue 347,009 183,013 

Total liabilities 2,003,583 2.181,599 

Net Assets 

  

Without donor restrictions 8,167,996 7,539,802 
With donor restrictions 5,11 3,1 51 4,338,387 

Total net assets 13.291.247 11.878.189 

Total liabilities and net assets $15,294,830 $14,059,788 

See notes to consolidated tinancial statements. 
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Exhibit 13 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 2024 
(with comparative totals for 2023) 

Support and Revenues 
Support: 

Contributions and 

Net Assets 
Without 
Donor 

Restrictions 

Net Assets 
With Donor 
Restrictions 

2024 
Totals 

2023 
Totals 

    

other grants $4,285,175 $ 687,459 S 4,972.634 $ 5.138,227 
National Endowment for the 

Humanities Grants 

 

1,045,596 1,045.596 1.104,581 
DHH Head Start Grant 

 

10,159,202 10,159.202 14.013,032 
USDA Grant 

 

513,948 513.948 62(),314 
Other ”0,897 

 

220.897 115,188 

Revenue: 

    

Investment income, net 847,870 72,407 910,277 111,216 
Buildmg income 144.327 

 

144.327 167,334 
Program income 247,122 

 

247.122 396,979 
Net assets released 

from restrictions 11,693,748 (11,693.748) 

  

Total support and revenues 17,439,139 784,864 18,224.003 21.666,971 

Expenses 

    

Prograrn expenses: 

    

Head Start 10,670,775 

 

10,670,775 16,636,251 
Louisiana Humanities Center 617,777 

 

617.777 544,475 
Education 1,243,841 

 

1,243,841 948,755 
Content 1,874.121 

 

1,874.121 1,923,570 
John Scott Center 351,664 

 

351.664 228,940 
General and adrninistrative 1,620,743 

 

1,620.743 1.982,747 
Fundraising 432,024 

 

432,024 404,287 

Total expenses 16,810,945 

 

16.810.945 .22.669,025 

Change in Net Assets 628.194 784,864 1,413.058 (1,0(t2,054) 

Net Assets 

    

Beginning of year 7,539,802 4,338,387 11,878,189 12,880,243 

End of year $ 8,167,996 S 5.123,251 S13,791. )47 S 11.878,189 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Exhibit C 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31. 2024 
(with comparative totals for 21123) 

Expenses 

    

2024 

    

2023 
Totals 

  

P1021111111 

  

General 
and 

Adm i n i sir at ive Fundraising Totals Head Start 

Louisiana 
Humanities 

Center Education Content 

John 
Scotr 
Center 

Total 
Progam 

          

Salaries and benefits $ 6,7211,865 $ 1,856 $ 530279 $ 383,872 $171,166 $ 8.308,038 $1,006.454 S247,201 $ 9,561,693 $12.277,864 
Other opei at ing expense 1,329.407 172.164 30.981 20,391 49.574 1.602.517 218.719 29,596 1,850.832 2.344.449 
Consultants expense 504.471 750 340,656 138.062 58.971 1.042.012 237.171 57.084 1.337.167 I.212.23X 
Contributed rent and 

professional services 1,165.080 - 

   

1,165.0S0 - 

 

1,165.080 1,154.91' 
Supplies and materials expense 168.436 4.623 318,829 96,351 58.607 (146.847 46,208 14,688 707.743 931.275 
Replants 

 

- 

 

578,956 

 

578.956 - 

 

57S.956 864.773 
Building expense 320,468 198.708 165 

 

318 519.659 1.791 

 

521,450 548.772 
Depieciation 211.876 225.159 - 

 

- 437.035 - 

 

437.035 478.034 
Equipment expense 139A 18 8.309 2,180 1.094 2.662 153.663 29.X24 ri.952 190A39 270.785 
Travel expense 74,685 6,119 10.360 41,623 3,513 136,300 31.012 10,221 178.123 247,607 
Printing expense 3.876 

 

7.716 102,141 922 114.655 1,886 18,980 135.521 139.428 
Meetings and events 32.192 89 1 .675 11.631i 5.930 52.516 21,465 47,302 121.283 175.376 
Interest expense - 

     

25.623 

 

25.623 20.932 
Contribution of property 

and equipment 

         

1,901.570 

Total expenses S 0. 6 7 0. 7 7  6 1 7 . 7 7 7    
4

 $1243.841  

 

.$1.874.121  $351.6(0  $14,758,178  S L620,743  S432.024 ti16.810.045 $22.6(, ).025  

See notes to consolidated funuicial statements. 
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Exhibit I) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanitic% 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 2024 
(with comparative totals for 2023) 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

2024 10,13 

  

Change in net assets $1,413,058 $ (1,002.054) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 

  

Net unrealized and realized gain on investments (856,372) (29,946) 
Depreciation 437,035 478,034 
Bad debt 

 

10,953 
Contribution of property and equipment 

 

1,902,570 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

  

Increase in accounts receivable (13,717) (39,531) 
(Increase) decrease in government 

grant receivable 411,751 (224,073) 
Decrease in unconditional 

promises to give 314,049 271,665 
(Increase) decrease in inventory (12,7£+(}) 12,820 
Decrease in prepaid expense 35,891 16,797 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities (340,916) 353,865 
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 163,996 (227,043) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,551,995 1,524,057 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

  

Payment of short term accounts payable 
used to finance equipment acquisition (72,318) 

 

Purchases of art collection items (1,436) (2,481) 
Purchases of property and equipment (1,735,234) (1,475,654) 
Purchases of investments securities (2,646,400) (=I£6,251) 
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,572,786 625.361 

Net cash used in investing activities (1,882.602) (1,339.025) 
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Exhibit I) 
(Continued) 

2023 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities 
Proceeds from (payments on) line of credit, net (7) 99.015 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (33(014) 284.047 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

  

Beginning of year l.391.831 1.107,784 

End of year $1,061.217 $ 1,391.83i 

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing 
and Financing Activities 

Property and equipment purchases included in 
accounts payahle $ 355.216 $ 72.318 

Interest paid $ 25,623 $ 2().932 

See notes to consolidated financial stateinents. 
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Exhibit E 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

October 31, 2024 and 2023 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC'OUNTING POLIC'IES 

a. Organization 

The Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities is a non-profit corporation organized 
for the purpose of maintaining a state-based program in the humanities in the State of 
Louisiana on behalf of its citizens in accordance with the regulations and guidelines 
established by the United States Congress and the National Endowment for tlie 
Humanities. 

Prime Time Fainily Reading is a non-profit corporation organized for the purpose of 
establishing and maintaining a family literacy and reading program in the humanities 
called Prirne Time in the State of Louisiana and in other states of the United States. 

b. Com,olidation Policy 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Louisiana Endowment 
for the Humanities and Prime Titne Family Reading. They are consolidated by virtue 
of common control. These companies are collectively referred to as the 
"Organization- . All significant intercompany transactions have beeii eliminated in 
consolidation. 

c. Basis of Accounting 

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization are prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America as promulgated hy the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB). Under this method, revenues are recognized when earned. and 
expenses are recorded wlien incurred. 
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Exhibit 11. 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC'OUNTING POLIC'IES (Continued) 

d. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

e. Financial Statenient Presentation 

The Organization classified its net assets, revenues, and expenses based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and 
changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Support. revenue. and expenses for the 
general operation of the Or€anization. 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor imposed 
stipulations that will he met either by actions of the Organization andior the 
passage of time, or iiet assets that are maintained permanently by the Organization 
and not expended. 

f. ( ash and C'ash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the Organization 
classifies as cash and cash equivalents all highly liquid debt instruments with an initial 
maturity of three months or less. 

g. Accounts ReceiN able 

The Organization regularly extends credit to its customers on an unsecured hasis. 
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect based on 
their review of outstanding balances. Manageinent provides for probable uncollectible 
amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on 
its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still 
outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are writteii off 
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The 
Organization's manageinent did not provide an allowance for credit losses for both of 
the years ended October 31, 2024 and 2023. There was lio bad debt expense for the 
year ended October 31, 2024. Bad debt expense for the year ended October 31, 2023 
totaled S10.953. 
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Exhibit 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

g. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 

The Organization estimates credit losses associated with accounts receivable using an 
expected credit loss inodel. which utilizes an aging schedule methodology based on 
historical information and adjusted for asset-specific considerations, current 
economic conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. 

The Organization's approach considers a number of factors. including overall 
historical credit losses and payinent experience, as well as current collection trends 
such as write-off frequency. The Organization also considers other qualitative factors 
such as current and forecasted conditions. 

h. Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of c.ost or net realizable value usiiig the first in. first 
out method. The inventory balance was $12,720 as of October 31. 2024. There was 
no inventory balance as of October 31, 2023. 

i. Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give are recognized when the donor makes a promise to 
give to the Organization that is. in substance, unconditional. Conditional promises to 
give are recognized when the conditions oii which they depeiid are substantially met. 
There were no conditional promises to give as of Octoher 31, 2024 and 2023. 

Unconditional promises are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts 
estimated hy the management of the Organization. There was no allowance for 
potentially uncollectible proinises to give as of October 31, 2024 and 2023. 

Investments 

Investments in equity Rinds, exchange traded funds, and hond funds are reported at 
their fair values in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Positioii. 

Pooled accounts managed hy the Greater New Orleans Foundation and the 
Community Foundation Northwest Louisiana are reported at thir inarket value, 
including any pro rata gains and losses. 

Unrealized gains and losses are recorded as increases or decreases in unrestricted net 
assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Interest earned 
on donor restricted investments is reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. Realized gains and losses on the sales of securities are 
determined using the specific-identification method. A decline in the fair value of 
investments below cost that is deemed to be other than temporary, results in a charge 
to the change in net assets and the establishment of a new basis for the new investment. 
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Exhibit E 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC'OUNTING POLIC'IES (Continued) 

k. Propert and Equipment 

The Organization's policy is to capitalize all property, furniture, and equipment with 
an acquisition cost in excess of $5.000. Property and equipment are recorded at cost. 
Donated property is recorded at its fair market value at the date of donation. Repairs 
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred., major renewals and 
replacements and betterments are capitalized. Depreciation is provided over the 
estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-
line method. 

The range of estiinated useful lives by type of property and equipinent is as follows: 

Years 

Buildines 39 
Building improvements 5 - 39 
Furniture. fixtures, and equipment 5 - 10 

1. Art C'ollections 

The Organization maintains a collection of art consisting primarily of the work of 
John T. Scott. The Organization does not record depreciation on its collection hecause 
the econoinic benefit or service potential of the collection has been determined to be 
indefinite. 

ni. Revenue and Revenue Recognition 

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, investments, other assets, 
unconditional promises to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. 
Conditional promises to give, that is. those with a measurable performance or other 
barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized as revenue until the conditions on 
which they depend have heen substantially met. 

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and 
state contracts and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance 
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts 
received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenditures 
in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to 
incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. No amounts have been received in 
advance from Federal and state contracts and grants. The Organization did not have 
any cost-reimbursable grants that have not been recognized as of October 31, 2024. 
The Organization received cost-reimbursable grants of $701,593 that have not been 
recognized as of October 31, 2023, hecause qualifying expenditures have not yet heen 
incurred. 
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Exhibit 11. 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC'OUNTING POLIC'IES (Continued) 

n. Contributions 

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net 
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence andlor nature of any donor 
restrictions. 

Contributions that are restricted by donors are reported as increases in net assets with 
donor restrictions. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassitied to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
Consolidated Stateinents of Activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

o. Functional Allocation of Expenws 

Most of the expenses can be directly allocated to programs or supporting functions. 
The financial statements also report certain categories of expenses that are attributable 
to both programs and supporting functions. Therefore. these expenses require 
allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are 
allocated include payroll and consultants expenses which were allocated hased on 
estimates of time and effort. Also, equipment. building, supplies and materials, other 
operating expenses, and depreciation expenses are based on an estimate of square 
footage of program building space and administration building space. 

p. Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

Measurement of Credit Losses 

ln June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-13, 
"Financial Ins-trurnents - Credit LOSS eSs  (Topic 326). The ASU introduces a new 
credit loss methodology, Current Expected Credit Losses (CECL), which requires 
earlier recognition of credit losses, while also providing additional transparency ahout 
credit risk. Since its original issuance in 2016, the FASB has issued several updates 
to the original ASU. 

The CECL methodology utilizes a lifetime "expected credit loss" measurement 
objective for the recognition of credit losses for loans. held-to-maturity securities and 
other receivables at the tirne the financial asset is originated or acquired. The expected 
credit losses are adjusted each period for changes in expected lifetime credit losses. 
The methodology replaces the multiple existing impairment methods in current 
GAAP, which generally require that a loss be incurred hefore it is recognized. For 
available-for-sale securities where fair value is less than cost. credit-related 
irnpairment, if any. is recognized through an allowance for credit losses and adjusted 
each period for changes in credit risk. The ASU was adopted for the year ended 
October 31. 2024. 
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Exhibit 11. 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC'OUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

q. Tax Nlatters 

The Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities and Prime Tirne Farnily Reading are 
organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana and are exempt from Federal 
incorne tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. and qualify as 
organizations that are not private foundations as defined in Section 509(a) of the Code. 

Accounting standards provide detailed guidance for financial staternent recognition, 
rneasurernent, and disclosure of uncertain tax positions recognized in an entity's 
financial statenlents. These standards require an entity to recognize the financial 
statement impact of a tax position when it is more likely than not that the position will 
not be sustained upon examination. As of October 31, 2024, management of the 
Organization believes that it has no uncertain tax positions that qualify tbr either 
recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial staternents. Tax years ended 
October 31. 2021 and later remain subject to examination by the taxing authorities. 

r. Reclassifications 

Certain amounts in the 2023 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified 
to conform to the 2()24 consolidated financial statement presentation. 

Note 2 - CONCENTRATION OF C'REDIT RISK 

The Organization maintains cash accounts at several financial institutions. The Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation insures accounts at each institution up to S250,000. The 
Organization also has cash equivalent accounts with a brokerage tirni. The Securities 
Investor Protection Corporation insures these accounts up to $250,000. There was 
approximately $122,000 in uninsured or non-guaranteed cash and cash equivalent 
balances as of October 31. 2024. 

Note 3 - ACCOUNTS REC'EIVABLE 

The accounts receivable as of October 31. 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

 

2024 /023 

Content $24,000 $25,237 
Building /22/4 17,752 
Contributions 9,995 9,494 
Education 3,635 6,754 
Other 13.100 

 

Total accounts receivable. net S 72.954 $ 59./37 
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Exhibit E 
((:ontinued) 

Note 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (('ontinued) 

Accounts receivable balances are predominantly comprised of amounts currently due 
from customers (e.g., for content building rent, general contributions, educational 
programs, and other services). 

The following table summarizes receivables and related allowance tbr credit losses as of 
October 31, 2024, 2023 and November 1, 2022. 

 

October 31, October 31, November 1, 

 

2024 2024 2()23 

Receivable, goss S 72.954 $59,237 $ 30,659 
Allowance for credit losses 

   

Receivables, net of credit losses S 72,954 S59.237 S30.659 

Many of the Organization's loss estimation techniques rely on delinquency-based 
models, therefore, delinquency is an important indicator of credit quality in the 
establishment of the Organization's allowance tbr credit losses. The Organization 
manages the receivables using delinquency as a key credit quality indicator. 

The following table presents the delinquency status as of October 31, 2024 and 1013: 

 

2024 2023 

Current - 30 days $ 3,578 $ 14,910 
31-60 days 15.778 2,039 
61-90 days 2,941 17,135 
Greater than 9() days 50,657 25.153 

Receivables, net of credit losses $ 72,954 $ 59,237 

The Organization estimates credit losses on receivables by applying an expected credit 
loss model, which relies on historical loss data to calculate default probabilities. The 
assessment of default probahilities includes receivables delinquency status. historical loss 
experience and how long the receivables have been outstanding. The Organization also 
considers the need to adjust the estimate of credit losses on receivables for reasonable 
and supportahle forecasts and internal statistical analyses. 

There was no activity for the years ended October 31, 2024 and 2023 in the allowance 
for credit losses. 
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Note 4 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE 

The grants receivable as of October 31, 2024 and 2023 

State of Louisiana - critical cultural 

are as follows: 

2024 2023 

  

infrastructure support program $ 124,070 246,436 
Baptist Community Foundation 108,000 188,000 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 76.616 107,667 
Zeinurray Foundation 3333 ,3 66,667 
United Way 26.667 26,667 
New Orleans Jazz and Heritage 5,000 

 

Kellogg Foundation 

 

150,000 

Total gant receixable 5373.686 $785 437 

Note 5 - UNCONDITIONAL PROMISES TO GIVE 

Unconditional promises to give as of October 31, 2024 and 2023 consist of the following: 

2024 2023 

Patrick F Taylor Foundation $300.000 
Helis Foundation 14,049 

314.049 
Less: 

Allowance fi-ir uncollectible receivables 
Discounts to net present value    

Total accounts receivable, net   S 314.049 
    

Receivahle in less than one year 
Receivable in one to fiw years   

S314.049 

   

Totals S314.049 

Promises to give are reported at their present value using a discount rate of approximately 
5% as of October 31, 2()23. 
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(Continued) 

Note 6 - INVESTMENTS 

Investments as of October 3 1. 2024 and 2023 are comprised of the following: 

  

2024 

 

Cost 
Fair Market 

Value 

Excess of 
Market Over 

Cost 

Mutual Funds $2,538,026 $2,853,547 $ 315,521 
Exchanee traded funds 659.157 1,131.871 472,614 

Individual investrnent securities 
manaeed by a financial institution 3,197,283 3,985.418 758,135 

Comnninity Foundation Northwest 
Louisiana Pooled Investment Fund 187,411 372.921 185,510 

Greater New Orleans Foundation 
Pooled Investment Fund 39,363 71.734 31,371 

Totals 3.424.057 54.430.073 1.006,016 

1 013 

 

Cost 
Fair Market 

Value 

Excess of 
Market Over 

Cost 
(Cost Over 

Market) 

Mutual Funds $2,060,198 $1,890,651 $ (169,547) 
Exchange traded funds 925,641 1.220,562 294.921 

Individual investment securities 
managed by a financial institution 2,985,839 3,111,213 125,374 

Community Foundation Northwest 
Louisiana Pooled Investment Fund 199,138 327,003 127,865 

Greater New Orleans Foundation 
Pooled Investment Fund 41.881 61,871 19,988 

Totals $3,226,860 S 3,500,087 $ 273,227 
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Note 6 - INVESTMENTS (('ontinued) 

  

1 014 

 

Cost Market 

Excess of 
Market Ow r 

Cos t 

Balances, October 31, 2024 53,424,057 $4.430,073 $1,006,016 

Balances, October 31, 2023 $3.226,860 S3.500.087 173.127 

Increase in unrealized 
appreciation 

  

732,789 
Net realized gain 

  

123,583 
Interest and di‘idend incoine 

  

92,595 
Investment expense 

  

(28,690) 

Total investment income, net 

  

5; 920.277 

  

1 013 

 

Cost Market 

Excess of 
Market Oxer 

Cost 

Balances. October 31,1013 53.226.860 53.500.087 
. 

$ 273,227  

53,381,677 53,609,251 Balances, October 31,1011 227,574 

Increase in unrealized 
appreciation 

  

45,653 
Net realized loss 

  

(15,707) 
Interest and dividend income 

  

105,591 
Investment expense 

  

(24,321) 

Total investment income, net 

  

$ 111,216 

Note 7 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The framework tbr measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes 
the inputs to vahmtion techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in the active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The tlu-ee 
levels of the fair value hierarchy under the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements are described 
as follows: 
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Note 7 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation inethodology are unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Organization has the 
ability to access. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

• quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets: 

• quoted prices for identical or siinilar assets or liabilities in inactive 
markets; 

• inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 
liability., and 

• inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by 
observable inarket data by correlation or other means. 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term. the Level 2 input must he 
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservahle and significant to the 
fair value measurement. 

The asset's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the 
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation 
techniques maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

The following is a description of the valuation inethodologies wed for assets measured 
at fair value: 

• Mutual Funds: Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual 
fund.s held by the Organization are open-ended mutual fund.s that are registered 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These funds are required to publish 
their daily net asset value (NAV) and to transact at that price. The mutual ftmds 
held by the Organization are deemed to be actively traded. 

• Excliange Traded Funds: Valued at the daily closing price as reported hy the fund. 
Funds held by the Organization are with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
These funds are required to publish their daily NAV and to transact at that price. 
The funds held by the Organization are deemed to he actively traded. These are 
included in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. 
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Note 7 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

• Investment Pools: Valued using the NAV as reported by the custodians. The NAV 
is determined based on the fair value of the underlying investments. The 
custodians of these portfolios use independent pricing services, where available, 
to value the securities included in the portfolios. If an independent pricing service 
does not value a security or the value is not, in the view of the custodian, 
representative of the market value. the custodians will attempt to obtain a price 
quote from a secondary pricing source, which rnay include third party brokers, 
investnlent advisors, and the principal market makers or affiliated pricing services. 
If a secondary source is unable to provide a price. the custodian rnay obtain a 
quotation from the counterparty that sold the security. The investment pools are 
included in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

These rnethods inay produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furtherrnore. while the Organization 
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value 
of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the 
reporting date. 

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of October 31. 2024 and 2023 are 
comprised of and determined as follows: 

1014 
Based on 

Description  

Quoted 
Prices Other 

Total Assets in Active Observable Unobservable 
Measured at Markets Inputs Inputs 
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)        

Mutual funds $2,853,547 52,853,547 

  

Exchange traded funds 1,131,871 1.131,871 

  

Pooled investment funds 444,655 

  

444,655 

Total imr stments $4,430,073 $3.985.418 $ $444,655 
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(Continued) 

Note 7 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 

2023 
Based on 

Description  

Quoted 
Prices Other 

Total Assets in Active Observable Unobservable 
Measured at Markets Inputs Inputs 
Fair Value (Level 1) Lewl 2) (Level 3) 

         

Mutual funds $1890,651 S1,890,651 $ 
Exchange traded funds 1,220.562 1.220.562 
Pooled invesnnent funds 388 874 388.874 

Total investments $3 500.087 $3,111,213 $  $388,874 

The following provides a sununary of changes in fair value of the Organization's Level 
3 assets for the years ended October 31, 2024 and 2023: 

Pooled 
Investment 
Accounts 

October 31. 2022 394,220 
Investment income. net 10,802 
Distributions (16,148) 

Level 3 assets, October 31.2023 

Investment income, net 
Distributions 

388,874 

72,406 
(1(i,625)   

Level 3 assets, October 31, 2024 x444.655 

As of October 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no assets measured at fair value on a non-
recurring hasis. 
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Note 8 - PROPERTY, BUILDING, AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, building, and equipment as of October 31, 2024 and 2023 consists of the 
following: 

 

2024 2023 

Land $ 606,674 $ 606,674 
Building 7,558,()25 5,200351 
Leasehold improvements 743,869 729.644 
Furniture and equipment 1,580,802 1,019,914 
Construction in progress 383,848 1,225,784 

 

10,873,218 8,782.767 
Less accumulated depreciation (2.123.328) (1,686,292) 

Property and equipment, net $8,749,890 $7,096.475 

Depreciation expense totaled $437,035 and 5478.034 for the years ended October 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Note 9 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES AND ACCRUED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Certain full-time employees are entitled to paid time off depending on length of service 
and other factors. Accrued paid time off included in accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities was $62,307 and $60,342 as of October 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Note 10 - LINE OF CREDIT 

In March 2023, the Organization ohtained a $500,000 line of credit with a local bank with 
a variable interest rate of Wall Street Journal Prime Rate + 1%. (8.75% and 9.5% as of 
October 31, 2024 and 2023. respectively). The note is due on demand and was renewed 
in March 2024 through March 21, 2()26. The note is secured by all property of the 
Organization. The line of credit had no halance as of October 31, 2024 and 2023. 

Note 11 - NOTE PAYABLE 

In June 2022, the Organization obtained a $400,000 note with a local bank with a variable 
interest rate of Wall Street Journal Prime Rate + 1%, (£+.75% and 9.5% as of October 31, 
2024 and 2023. respectively). The note is due on demand and expires June 21, 2()25. The 
note is secured by all property of the Organization. The line of credit had a halance of 
$233,587 and S233,594 as of October 31, 2()24 and 2023, respectively. 

Interest expense totaled S25.623 and 520.932 for the years ended C)ctober 31. 2024 and 
2023, respectively. 
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Note 12 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Net assets with donor restrictions as of October 31, 2()24 and 2()23 are available for the 
following purposes: 

DHH Head Start - restricted property 

2024 1013 

  

and equipment $ 2,702,374 $1,799,991 
Humanities and Education 

Pro4umming 1,492,734 1,666,035 
National Endowment for the 

Humanities Operatine grant 348,289 348.288 
Donor restricted endowment funds 343,250 343,250 
Restricted Capital Campaign 

contributions 135,199 135,199 
Earnings - endowment fund 101.405 45,624 

Totals S5.123.251 S4.338.387 

During the years ended October 31, 2024 and 2023, net assets released from donor 
restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes are as follows: 

 

2024 2023 

DHH Head Start $ 9,256,106 S17.344.185 
National Endowment for the 

Humanities: 

  

Operations 1,076,033 932.010 
Humanities and Education 

Programming 831,145 502.173 
USDA Child and Adult 

Care Food Program 513,839 619,867 
Earnings - endowment fund 16,625 16,148 
Capital Campaip 

 

27.588 

Totals $ 11,693,748 $19,441,971 
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Note 13 - ENDOWMENT 

Management is of the belief that they have a strong fiduciary duty to manage the assets 
of the Organization's endowtnents in the most prudent manner possible. Management 
recognizes that the intent of the endowment is to protect the donor with respect to 
expenditures from endowments. If this intent is clearly expressed by the donor, whether 
the intent is in a written gift instrument or not, the intent of the donor is followed. 
Earnings, including appreciation, that are not required by the donor to be reinvested in 
corpus are maintained in net assets without donor restrictions. 

The Endowment. The endowment consists of two individual funds, established for the 
purposes of fulfilling the Organization's mission and accomplishing its goals. As required 
by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, net assets 
associated with endowment funds are classified and reported on the existence or absence 
of donor-imposed restrictions. 

Interpretation of Relevant Law. The Organization has interpreted the State Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (SPMIFA) as expressly requiring the preservation 
of the historical dollar value for donor restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor 
stipulations to the contrary. 

The following are classified as restricted net assets in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements: 

• the original value of gifts donated to the endowment; 

• the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment., and 

• accumulations to the endowment that are required to be held in perpetuity. 

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment ftmd that is not classified as 
restricted net assets is classified as net assets without restrictions. Amounts are 
appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the 
language of SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Organization considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accutnulate donor-restricted 
endowment ftmds: 

• the duration and preservation of the fund; 

• the purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund: 

• general econotnic conditions; 

• the possible effect of inflation and deflation; 

• the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments; 

• other resources of the Organization; and 

• the investment policies of the Organization. 
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Note 13 - ENDOWMENT (Continued) 

Net endowment assets as of October 31, 2()24 and 2023 consist of the following: 

2024 
Net Assets 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

Net Assets 
With Donor 
Restrictions Totals 

Earnings - endowment fund $101,405 $101,405 
Donor restricted endowment 

funds 343.250 343.250 

Totals S444,655 S444,655 

 

2023 

  

Net Assets Net Assets 

  

Without Donor With Donor 

  

Restrictions Restrictions lOtals 

Earnings - endowment fund S - S 45,624 S 45,624 
Donor restricted endowrnent 

funds - 343,250 343,250 

Totals 

 

S388.874 S388.874 

Changes in endowment funds net assets for the years ended October 31, 2024 and 2023 
are as follows: 

October 31. 2024 
Net Assets 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

Net Assets 
With Donor 
Restrictions Totals 

Endowment net assets. 

  

beginning of the year $388,874 $388,874 
Investment income. net 72,406 72,406 
Distributions (16.625) (16,625) 

Endowment net assets, 
end of the year $444.655 $444,655 
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Note 13 - ENDOWMENT (Continued) 

October 31, 2023 
Net Assets Net Assets 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions  Totals   

5394,220 $394,220 
10.802 10,802 

(16,148) (16,148) 

5388,874 S388,874 

Endowment net assets, 
beginning of the year 

Investment income, net 
Distributions 

Endowment net assets, 
end of the year 

Underwater Endowment Funds. From tiine to time, the fair value of assets associated 
with individual donor-restricted endowinent funds may fall below the level that either 
donor or SPMIFA requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. 
These deficiencies can result from unfavorable market fluctuations that occur after the 
investment of restricted contributions. There were no such deficiencies in restricted net 
assets as of October 31, 2()24 and 2023. 

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters. The Organization has adopted investment and 
spendthg policies for endowinent assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of 
funding to programs supported by its endowment, while seeking to maintain the 
purchasing power of the endowment assets. Under the investment policy, endowment 
assets are invested in pooled investment accounts. 

Strategies Employed lin. Achieving Objectives. Because the Organization seeks to 
maintain the endowment assets in perpetuity, and because the pooled investment accounts 
are held and maintained by established Foundations. management has elected to follow 
the general investinent strategies of the Foundations which maintain the pooled 
investments. 

Spending Policy and How Investment Objectives Relate to the Spending Polio% 
Management's policy for appropriating funds for annual expenditures is to distribute only 
earnings on endowed assets following the individual spending and distribution policies 
of the Foundation which maintains the pooled investment. Management has determined 
that the policies of the Foundations are consistent with the management's long-term 
objective to preserve the real purchasing power of the principal and provide a stable 
source of perpetual financial support. 
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Note 14 - CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS 

For the years ended October 31, 2024 and 2023, contributed nonfinancial assets 
recognized in contributions and other grants on the Consolidated Statements of Activities 
included: 

 

2024 2023 

Rent $ 804,255 $ 994,698 
Professional services 3(i0,825 260,224 

Totals $1 105.080 S1.254.922 

The Organization recognized contributed nontinancial assets within contributions and 
other grants on the Consolidated Statements of Activities. 

Revenue Resenue Utilization tn 
Recognized Reci)guzed Programs Doniir 

2024 2023 Activities Restrictions  
Valuation Techniques 

and Inputs   

Rent $ 804.255 $ 9,)4.o9S Head Start No The Organization estimated the fair 
associated value based on an estimate of the 

donor cost of renting sinular building 
restrictions space in similar locations. 

Professional $ 360.8")5 $ 260.224 Head Start No The Organization estimated the fair 

fees and associated vrilue based on an estimate of the 

consultants doniir cost of purchasmu similar senices. 
restrictions 

Note 15 - RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution plan covering all employees 21 years 
or older. The participant becomes fully vested after five years. The Organization decides 
the profit-sharing contribution, if any, to contribute each year to the individual retirement 
accounts for eligible employees based on a percentage of annual compensation. There 
was no profit sharing contributions for the years ended October 31. 2024 and 2023. For 
the years ended C)ctober 31, 2024 and 2023, there was a matching contribution of 
employee elective deferrals up to 4%. Contributions to the plan for the years ended 
October 31, 2024 and 2023 totaled $133,563 and $178,496, respectively. 
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Note 16 - AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 

The Organization is substantially supported by contributions and grants. The 
C)rganization is also supported by program income, building income, and investment 
income. Because a donor's restriction requires resources to he used in a particular manner 
or in a future period. the Organization must maintain sufticient resources to meet those 
responsibilities to its donors. As part of the Organization's liquidity management, it has 
a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, 
liabilities, and other obligations becoine due. To help inanage unanticipated liquidity 
needs, the Organization has a committed line of credit in the amount of S500.000. The 
Organization has established guidelines for making decisions related to managing short-
term cash reserves and other investments in a prudent manner. 

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of October 31. 2()24 arid 
2023, reduced by amounts not available for general use became of donor-imposed 
restrictions. 

Financial assets: 

"7024 '2011 

  

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,061.217 S 1,391.831 
Accounts receivable, net 72,954 59,237 
Grants receivable 373.686 785.437 
Unconditional pronuses to give - current 

 

314.049 
Investments 4,430.073 3,500.087 

Total financial assets 5,937,930 6,050,641 

Less amounts unavailahle for general 
expenditures. due to. 
Donor imposed restrictions: 

  

Restricted by donors vvith purpose 
restrictions, net of restricted property and 

equipment of $2,702.374 and $1,799,991 as of 
October 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively (2,077,627) (2,195,14(;) 

Endonment assets held in perpetuity (343,250) (343,250) 

Total amounts unavailable 
for general expenditures (2.420,877) (2,538,396) 

Financial assets mailable to meet cash needs 
for general expenditures S3,517.053 S3,51'7 '745 
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Note 17 - COMMITMENTS 

The Organization entered into a five year contract commencing September 1, 2()16, with 
a third party to perform functions associated with recruitment, teacher coaching and 
mentoring, health, family services, mental health and disabilities, and monitoring for 
Head Start prograins in Monroe. Louisiana and Lafayette, Louisiana. This contract is 
operating on a month-to-month basis. The Organization incurred $321,303 and $291,972 
in contract expenses tbr the years ended October 31, 2()24 and 2023, respectively. 

The Organization entered into a contract related to meal preparation for the students in 
Monroe and Lafayette. Louisiana. The contract expired July 31. 2019 and was renewed 
through July 31, 2020. The contract was subsequently renewed through September 30, 
2025 for students in Lafayette, Louisiana. The contract calls for a fixed amount per meal 
provided. The Organization inclined costs of $46 L967 and 5950.425 associated with the 
contract during the years ended October 31. 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Note 18 - LEASE AGREEMENTS 

Lessor 

The Organization maintains agreements to lease portions of its New Orleans office 
building. These lease terms range from S3I5 to $4.418 per month and expire through 
October 31, 2026. The future ininirnuin rentals under these non-cancelable operating 
leases as of October 31, 2()24 are as tbllows: 

Year Ending 
October 3 1,  

2025 $ 62,121 
2026 21.576 

Total $83.697 

For the years ended October 31, 2024 and 2023. income front these leases totaled 
$144,327 and 5167,334, respectively. 
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Note 18 - LEASE AGREEMENTS (Continued) 

The Organization has the following lease agreements as of October 31. 2024: 

  

Date Lease 

Monthlv 
Payment 

or Range of 

 

Lease Description Lessor Commenced Payments Lease Expiration 

* Copier Equipment Leasing Company ( ictober 2019 S1904501 October 2022 - 

    

June 30, 2029 

* Building Space Iberia Parish December 2020 

 

October 31, 2025 

 

School District 

   

Building Space Non-Profit March 2()21 

 

October 31, 2025 

 

Organization 

   

Building Space Leasine Company Aueust 2024 $2,000 September 30, 2()25 

* Included in operating leases under FASB ASC 842. 

Terms of I .case 

Will terminate through June 30. 
2029. 

Monthly payment of S2,000 for 
administration. lease term includes 
optional extensions. 

Responsible for paying all repair 
and maintenance expenses. 
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Note 18 - LEASE AGREEMENTS (Continued) 

Operating Leases 

Total lease expense was S844,586 (including $804,255 of contributed rent) and 
$1,147.218 (including S994.698 of contributed rent) for the years ended October 31. 2024 
and 2023, respectively. Lease expense is reported in other opzratin€ expenses on the 
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. See Note 13 for contributed 
nonfinancial assets. 

Reported under FASB ASC 842 for the year ended October 31, 2024 is as follows: 

2024 

Lease Cost 
Operating lease costs S47,551 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities 
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement 

of lease liabilities: 
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 47.5,51 

  

Operating Leases 
Right-of-use assets S87271 

Lease liabilities $ 87,272 

Weighted-Average Information 
Weighted-awrage remaining lease in years 1.7 years 

Weighted-average discount rate: 
Operatingleases 4.7% 

Future rental payments as of October 31. 2024 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
December 31.  Amounts    

2025 $67,371 
2026 15,802 
2027 4,810 
2028 2,280 
2029 1,520 

Total lease payments 
Less amounts representing interest 

91,783 
(4.511)   

Long-term lease obligation S87.272 
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Note 19 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENC'Y 

The Organization receives a substantial portion of its revenue from grants provided by 
the National Endowment for the Humanities (NEH) and the Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS). The grant amounts are appropriated each year by the federal 
government. If significant budget cuts are made at the federal level, the arnount of the 
funds the Organization receives could be reduced significantly and have an adverse 
impact on its operations. Approximately 61% and 70% of the support was received froin 
the NEH and the DHHS for the years ended October 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Note 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of the consolidated 
financial statements in determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and 
events that effect the consolidated financial stateinents. Subsequent events have been 
evaluated through April 25, 2025, which is the date the consolidated fiiiancial statement 
were available to he issued. 

On Febniary 6, 2()25, the Organization entered into a settlement agreement and general 
release with a vendor related to its Head Start Program contract. During the year ended 
October 31, 2025, the Organization received a settlement of $550,000 related to this 
agreernent. 
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Schedule 1 

CONSOLIDATING S( HEDULE OF SI PPORT, REVENUE. AND EXPENSES 

Louisiana Endow inent for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the vear ended October 31, 1014 

Support and Revenues 

Louisiana 
Endowment 

For The 
Humanities 

Prime 
Time 

Family 
Reading 

The Helis 
Foundation 
John Scott 

Center Eliminations Totals 

     

Government grants S 1,043,705 $10,672,329 $ 2,000 

 

$11,718,034 
Contributions, and other grants 3,71-1,099 1,00,080 69,167 

 

-1,973,3-16 
Other 190,781 9,000 21,116 

 

220,897 
Investment income, net 920,154 23 

  

9/0.177 
Buildmg income 229,327 

 

- (85.00(t) 144,327 
Program income 246,982 

 

140 

 

247.122 

Total support and revenues 6.345,148 1 i 92.423 (85,000) 18,224.003 

Expenses 

     

Salaries and benefits 2,8O,173 6,750,415 2,105 

 

9,561,693 
Other operating expense 508,071 1,332.662 95,099 (S5,( ►00) 1,850.832 
Consultants expense 773,210 493,137 70,820 - 1,337,167 
Contributed rent and 

professional services 

 

1,165,080 

  

1,165,080 
Supplies and materials expense 502,025 170,184 35,534 

 

707,743 
Regrants 578,956 - 

  

578,956 
Building expense 200,665 320,467 318 

 

521,45(1 
Depreciation /15,159 211,876 

  

437,035 
Equipment expense 51,021 139.418 

  

190.439 
Travel expense 144,144 32,913 1,066 

 

178,123 
Printing expense 130,385 4,543 593 

 

135.521 
Meetings and events 82,840 32,812 5,631 

 

121,283 
Interest expense 3,166 - 22,457 

 

25,623 
Allocated expenses 029,464) 885,579 43,885 

  

Total expenses 5,079,351 11.539,086 '77.508 ( S5.000) 16,810,945 

Change in net assets 1,265,797 332,346 I 185.(t85) 

 

1,413,058 

Net Assets 

     

Beginning of year 9.149,763 2,955.113 (226,687) 

 

11,878_189 

End of year S10.415,560 $ 3,287.459 $(411,772) $ 513.291,247 
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Schedule 2 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER 
PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 1014 

Agency Head Name: Miranda Restovic, President:Executive Director 

Purpose 
Salary $0 
Benefits - insurance 
Benefits - retirement 
Benefits - other 
Car allowance 0 
Vehicle provided by government 
Per diem 0 
Reimbursements 
Travel 0 
Registration fees 
Conference travel 
Continuing professional education fees 
Housing 0 
Unvouchered expenses 
Special meals 0 

$t) * 

* None of the President/Executive Director's salary, benefits, and other compensation is paid 
through public fiinding, except for travel. 
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SPECIAL REPORTS OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS l CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL  
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND  

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors, 
Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities and 

Prime Time Family Reading, 
New Orleans, Louisiana. 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial 
staternents of Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities and Prime Time Family Reading (the 
"Organization") (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial 
position as of October 31, 2024, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 25, 2025. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we consider 
the Organization's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a basis for 
determining audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses inay exist that have not heen identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated 
financial statements are free from inaterial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the consolidated financial statements. However, providing 
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an ohjective of our audit. and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance aiid the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
perfmned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

/6 "a"AnAvtl
zze 

Certified Public Accountants. 

New Orleans, Louisiana. 
April 25. 2025. 
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Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIF ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS 

 A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED  
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE  

To the Board of Directors, 
Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities and 

Prime Time Family Reading, 
New Orleans, Louisiana. 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities and Prime Time Family Reading 
(the "Organization") compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the Office 
of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the Organization's major federal programs for the year ended October 31, 2024. 
The Organization's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section 
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended October 31, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Award (Uniform Guidance). 
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
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We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion 
on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
the Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for 
the design, implementation, and rnaintenance of effective internal control over cornpliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements 
applicable to the Organization's federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing 

Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect inaterial noncompliance when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than that resulting 
from error, as fraud inay involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above 
is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it 
would inthience the judgment inade by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the 
Organization's compliance with the requirements of the federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, 
Govermnent Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Organization's intenial control over compliance relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oii the effectiveness of the Organization's 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
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Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures did not disclose instances of noncompliance which 
are required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. Our opinion on each major 
federal progratn is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over cotnpliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
cornpliance requirement of a federal program on a timely hasis. A material Weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a cornbination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
tirnely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency. or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal progratn that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
cornpliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over conipliance was for the limited purpose descrihed 
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over cornpliance. Given these limitations. during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to he 
material weaknesses as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over cornpliance is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitahle for any other 
purpose. 

/8twreAlAttizze 
Certified Public Accountants. 

New Orleans. Louisiana, 
April 25. 2025. 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 2024 

Federal Grantor/Program Title 
Grant 

Number 

Federal 
AL 

Nurnber 
Federal 

Expenditures 
Subrecipient 

Costs 

National Endowment for the 
Humanities 

Prornotion of the Hurnanities - 
Federal/State Partnership: 

    

State Hurnanities Prograrn SO-268680-20 45.129 $ 1,003,958 $ 74,500 
National History Day 

Supplements SSO-296172-23 45.129 16,092 

 

United We Stand 
Supplements SSO-296484-23 45 .129 

     

25,546 

    

I ,045,5% 74.500 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

    

Pass-through Programs From: 

    

Louisiana Department of Education: 

    

Child and Adult Care 
Food Prograin 623997843 10.558 513,948 

 

U.S. Department of Health and 

    

Human Services 

    

Head Start Grant 06CH011822 93.600 10,082,842 

 

Head Start Grant 06CH012190 93.600 76,360 

    

10,159,202 

 

Total expenditures of 
federal awards 

  

$11,718,746 $ 74,500 

See accornpanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 10/4 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC'OUNTING POLIC'IES 

a. General 

The accornpanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity 
of all federal award.s of Louisiana Endowment tbr the Humanities and Prime Time 
Family Reading (the "Organization"). The Organization's reporting entity is defined 
in Note 1 to the financial statements for the year ended October 31. 2024. All federal 
awards received directly from federal agencies are included on the schedule. as well 
as federal awards passed through other government agencies. 

b. Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using 
the accnial basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the Organization's 
financial staternents for the year ended October 31. 2()24. The Organization has 
elected to use the 10% cle minims iiidirect cost rate as allowed under Uniforin 
Guidance. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 2024 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

a) Financial Statements 

Type of report issued on the consolidated financial statements: unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be a material weakness? 

Noncompliance material to consolidated 
financial statements noted? Yes X No 

b) Federal Awards 

Internal controls over major programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be a material weakness? Yes X No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: unmodified 

• Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance? Yes X No 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (('ontinued) 

c ) Identification of Major Programs: 

CFDA Ntunber Name of Federal Pro,grara  

93.600 U.S Department of Health and 
Human Senic es 

Head Start Grant 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000  

(('ontinued) 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X Yes No 

Section II - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters 
Material to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Internal ('ontrol Over Financial Reporting 

No material weaknesses were reported during the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended October 31. 2024. 

No signiticant deticiencies were reported during the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended October 3 1. 2024. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

There were no compliance findings inaterial to the consolidated financial statements reported 
during the audit for the year ended October 31, 2024. 

Section III - Federal A‘lard Findings and Questioned Costs 

Internal ('ontrol and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

There were no findings or questioned costs reported during the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended October 31, 2024 related to internal control and 
compliance inaterial to federal awards. 
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REPORTS BY MANAGEMENT 



SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND 
QUESTIONED COSTS  

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 2024 

Section I - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Compliance mid Other Matters 
Material to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

No material weaknesses were reported during the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended October 31, 2023. 

No significant deficiencies were reported during the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended October 31. 2023. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

There were no compliance findings material to the consolidated financial statements reported 
during the audit tbr the year ended Octoher 31, 2023. 

Section II - Internal Control aiul ompliance Material to Federal Awards 

There were no findings or questioned costs reported during the audit of the consohdated financial 
statements for the year ended October 31. 2023 related to internal control and compliance 
material to federal awards. 

Section III - Management Letter 

A management letter was not issued in connection with the audit for the year ended October 31, 
2023. 
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MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 2014 

Section I - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting anti Compliance and Other Matters 
Material to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

No material weaknesses were reported cluring the audit of the consolidated tinancial 
statements for the year ended October 31, 2024. 

No significant deficiencies were reported during the audit of the consolidated financial 
statenlents for the year ended October 31, 2024. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

There were no compliance tindings inaterial to the consolidated financial statements reported 
during the audit for the year ended October 31, 2024. 

Section 11 - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

There were no findings or questioned costs reported during the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended October 31, 2024, related to internal control and compliance 
material to federal awards. 

Section III - Management Letter 

A management letter was not issued in connection with the audit tbr the year ended October 31, 
2024. 
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STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 



Bourgeois Bennett 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS I CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIAEULITY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT  
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Directors, 
Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities and 

Prime Time Family Reading, 
New Orleans, Louisiana. 

We have performed the procedures described in Schedule 3 on the control and compliance 
(C/C) areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA) Statewide Agreed-Upon 
Procedures (SAUP) for the fiscal period November 1, 2023 through October 31, 2024. Louisiana 
Endowment for the Humanities and Prime Time Family Reading (the "Organization") management 
is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The Organization has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified 
procedures on the C/C areas identified in the LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period November 1, 2023 
through October 31, 2024. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures 
performed are appropriate for its purpose. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. 
The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may 
not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining 
whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are described in Schedule 3. 

We were engaged by the Organization to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement 
and conducted our engagement in accordance with the attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government 
Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review 
engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, 
respectively, on these C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other rnatters might have corne to 
our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

47 

P.O. BOX 60600 . NEW ORLEANS, LA 70160-0600 . 504.831.4949 . BOURGEOISBENNETT.COM 
P.O. BOX 2168 . HOUMA, LA 70361-2168 . 985.868.0139 

34 LOUIS PRIMA, SUITE B . COVINGTON, LA 70433-5903 . 985.246.3022 



This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those CVC areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly. this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513. this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

/6",tri Asimti 

Certified Public Accountants. 

New Orleans, Louisiana, 
April 25, 2025. 
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Schedule 3 

SCHEDULE OF PROCEDURES AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 
OF THE STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES  

Louisiana Endowment for the Humanities 
and 

Prime Time Family Reading 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

For the year ended October 31, 2024 

The required procedures and our findings are as follows: 

1. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Written Policies and Procedures: 

A. Obtain and inspect The Organization's written policies and procedures and observe whether 
they address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds 
and the Organization's operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 
Perforrnance: Obtained and read the written policy for budgeting and found it to 

address all the functions listed above. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for purchasing and found it to 
address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 
Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for disbursements and found it to 

address all the functions listed above. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for receipts and collections and 
found it to address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

49 



Schedule 3 
(Continued) 

1. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Written Policies and Procedures: 
(Continued) 

v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time 
and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process 
for ernployee(s) rate of pay or approval and rnaintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for payroll and personnel and 
found it to address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Perforrnance: Obtained and read the policies for contracting and found it to address 
all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

vii.Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirernents, and (4) required 
approvers. 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for travel and expense 
reimbursement and found it to address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

viii. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including (1) 
how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., 
determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Performance: Obtained and read the written policy for credit cards and found it to 
address all the functions listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ix. Ethics, including (1) prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, 
(2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible 
ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate 
that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirernents, (3) debt reserve requirernents, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 
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Schedule 3 
(Continued) 

1. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Written Policies and Procedures: 
(('ontinued) 

xi. Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups; (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network., (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored; (4) use of antivirus software on all systems; (5) timely 
application of all available system and software patches/updates; and (6) identification of 
personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

Performance: Obtained and read the information technology disaster 
recovery/business continuity policy and found it to address all of the functions 
listed above. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

xii.Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for l) 

agency responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual 
reporting. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

2. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Board: 

A. Obtain and inspect the boardifinance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's enahling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the 
fiscal period and: 

i. Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, or other equivalent 
document. 

Performance: The Organization's bylaws require a minimum of 4 meetings annually. 
We obtained and read minutes from 4 board meetings during the year ended 
October 31, 2024. The frequency of and quonim representation of those meetings 
was considered to be appropriate. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the nonprofit accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included financial activity relating to puhlic funds if those public funds 
comprised more than 10% of the Organization's collections during the fiscal period. 

Performance: Inspected meeting minutes and determined that the ininutes referenced 
or included financial activity relating to puhlic funds. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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(Continued) 

2. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Board: (Continued) 

iii. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned 
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one 
meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the 
negative unrestricted fund balance in the general fund. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

iv. Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress 
of resolving audit findings), according to management's corrective action plan at each 
meeting until the findings are considered fully resolvecl. 

Not applicable. The Organization did not have audit findings for the year ended 
October 31. 2()23. 

3. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Bank Reconciliations: 

A. Obtain a listing of the Organization's bank accounts for the fiscal period from management 
and management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify 
the main operating account. Select the Organization's main operating account and select 4 
additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the 
fiscal period, ohtain and inspect the corresponding hank statement and reconciliation for each 
selected account, and ohserve that: 

Performance: Obtained the listing of bank accounts from management, and received 
management's representation in a separate letter that the listing is complete. The niain 
account and 4 other accounts were subject to the statewide agreed-upon procedures. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g.. initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

Pertbrmance: Obtained the selected monthly bank reconciliation for the month of 
April tbr the main operating hank account and the 4 additional accounts. Inspected 
management's documentation for timely preparation of the bank reconciliations. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers. or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation within 
one month of the date that the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged); and 

Performance: Inspected the Organization's documentation for the April bank 
reconciliations for the 5 bank accounts and verified a member of management who 
does not handle cash. post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed the bank 
reconciliation within one month of the date that the reconciliation was prepared. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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(Continued) 

3. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Bank Reconciliations: (('ontinued) 

iii. Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling iteins that 
have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if 
applicable. 

Performance: Examined documentation from management reflecting that it has 
researched reconciling items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months 
from the statement closing date. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

4. Procedures Performed on the Organiiation's Collections (Excluding Electronic Funds 
Transfers): 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cashichecksimoney 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Performance: Obtained the listing of deposit sites from management, and received 
management's representation in a separate letter that the listing is coinplete. Selected 
the sole location for testing. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (e.g., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies 
and procedures relating to einployee job duties at each collection location, and observe that 
job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

Performance: Obtained the listing of collection locations from management, and received 
management's representation in a separate letter that the listing is complete. Selected 
the sole location for testing. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 
Pertbrmance: Inspected policy manuals, inquired of client as to all of the requirements 

and observed the duties were properly segregated. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another einployee is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g.. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

Performance: Inspected policy manuals. inquired of client as to all of the requirements 
and observed the duties were properly segregated. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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4. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Collections (Excluding Electronic Funds 
Transfers): (Continued) 

iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers unless another ernployee is responsible 
for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

Performance: Inspected policy manuals, inquired of client as to all of the requirements 
and observed the duties were properly segregated. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. The employees responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source, are not responsible for collecting cash, unless 
another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

Perforrnance: Inspected policy manuals, inquired of client as to all of the requirements 
and observed the duties were properly segregated. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all 
employees who have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was in 
force during the fiscal period. 

Performance: Obtained a copy of the insurance policy for theft covering all employees 
who have access to cash. Observed that the insurance policy for theft was in force 
during the fiscal period. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

D. Randomly select 2 deposit dates for each of the Organization's bank accounts selected for 
procedures under "Procedures Performed on the Organization's Bank Reconciliations" #3A. 
Obtain supporting docurnentation for each of the deposits selected and: 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 
Performance: Obtained supporting docurnentation for the selected deposits and 

observed that no deposits required pre-numbered cash receipts. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, systern reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

Perforrnance: Traced supporting documentation to the deposit slip. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 
Performance: Traced deposit slip total to actual deposit per bank statement. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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4. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Collections (Excluding Electronic Funds 
Transfers): (Continued) 

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles frorn the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe 
or drawer). 

Perforrnance: Observed that the deposits tested were made within one business day of 
receipt. 

Exceptions: One deposit over $100 was not made within one business day. Exception 
noted. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank staternent to the general ledger. 
Perforrnance: Traced the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

5. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Non-Payroll Disbursements (Excluding 
Card Purchases/Payments, Travel Reimbursements, and Petty Cash Purchases): 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period, and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randornly select 5 locations (or all locations if 
less than 5). 

Performance: Obtained a listing of locations that process payrnents for the fiscal period 
from management, and received management's representation in a separate letter that 
the listing is complete. Selected the sole location for testing. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. For each location selected under procedure #5A, obtain a listing of those ernployees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the Organization has no written policies and procedures, 
inquire of ernployees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly 
segregated such that: 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees involved in non-payroll purchasing and 
payrnent functions and reviewed written policies and procedures related to employee job 
duties. Observed if the job duties were properly segregated. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. At least 2 employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order/making the purchase. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of ernployees involved in initiating a purchase 
request, approving a purchase, and placing an order/making a purchase. Observed 
at least 2 employees are involved. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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5. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Non-Payroll Disbursements (Excluding 
Card Purchases/Payments, Travel Reimbursements, and Petty Cash Purchases): 
(Continued) 

ii. At least 2 employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 
Performance: Obtained a listing of employees involved in processing and approving 

payments to vendors. Observed at least 2 employees are involved. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. The employees responsible for processing payments are prohibited from adding/ 
modifying vendor files unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing 
changes to vendor files. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees involved in processing payinents to 
vendors. Observed that the employee involved in processing payments can 
add/inodify vendor files. Confirmed that another employee is responsible for 
periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Either the employee responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees involved with signing and mailing 
checks and verified they are not involved in the processing of payments. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

v. Only employees authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) 
of funds, whether through automated clearing house (ACH), electronic funds transfer 
(EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees/officials authorized to sign checks and 
verified they approve the electronic disbursements of funds. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A, obtain the Organization's non-payroll 
disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 
disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

Performance: Obtained the Organization's non-payroll disburseinent transaction 
population and received management's representation in a separate letter that the 
population is complete. Randomly selected 5 disbursements from the sole location 
that processes payment for testing. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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5. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Non-Payroll Disbursements (Excluding 
Card Purchases/Payments, Travel Reimbursements, and Petty Cash Purchases): 
(Continued) 

i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the 
related original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that 
deliverables included on the invoice were received by the Organization. 

Perforrnance: Observed the 5 disbursements matched the related original 
invoice/billing statements and documentation indicates deliverables were 
received. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B, as applicable. 

Performance: Observed the 5 disbursements included evidence of segregation of 
duties. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

D. Using the Organization's main operating account and the month selected for procedures #3A 
under "Procedures Performed on The Organization's Bank Reconciliations", randomly select 
5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursernents (or all electronic disbursements if less than 5) 
and observe that each electronic disbursement was: 

i. Approved by only those persons authorized to disburse ftinds (e.g., sign checks) per the 
Organization's policy. 

Performance: Observed the 5 disbursements included evidence of approval by 
authorized persons. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Approved by the required number of authorized signers per the Organization's policy. 
Performance: Observed the 5 disbursements included evidence of approval by 

required number of authorized signers. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

6. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Credit Cards, Debit Cards, Fuel Cards, 
Purchase Cards: 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 
purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that 
the listing is complete. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, 
and purchase cards for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of 
the persons who maintained possession of the cards. Received management's 
representation in a separate letter that the listing is complete. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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6. Procedures Performed on the Organization's C'redit C'ards, Debit Cards, Fuel C'ards, 
Purchase Cards: (Continued) 

B. Using the listing prepared by management. randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 
5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly staternent or 
combined statement for each card (for a debit card, select one monthly bank statement), 
obtain supporting documentation, and: 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting docurnentation (e.g., original receipts for crediedebit card purchases. 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing 
(or electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder. 

Performance: Observed evidence that the staternent and supportin€ documentation 
were reviewed and approved. in writing, by someone other than the authorized 
card holder. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe that finance charges and/or late fees were not assessed on the selected 
statements. 

Performance: Observed that there were no finance charges and/or late fees assessed 
on the selected statements. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #6B, 
excluding fuel cards, select 1() transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
staternent, and obtain supporting docurnentation for the transactions (i.e.. each card should 
have 10 transactions subject to inspection). 

For each transaction, report whether the transaction is supported by: 

i. An original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 
Performance: Observed that the transactions from the monthly statements were 

supported by original itemized receipts that identify precisely what was purchased. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Written documentation of the businessipublic purpose. 
Performance: Observed that the transactions front the monthly staternents were 

supported with written docurnentation of the husinessipublic purpose. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Documentation of the individuals participatiiig in meals (for meal charges only). 
Performance: Observed that the selected transactions for rneal charges were supported 

by docuinentation of the individuals participating in ineals. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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7. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Travel and Travel-Related Expense 
Reimbursements (Excluding Card Transactions): 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Performance: Obtained a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period from management, and received management's representation 
in a separate letter that the listing is complete. Obtained the related expense 
reimbursement form and supporting documentation for 5 reimbursements. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established 
either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

Performance: Per diem was used for 3 of the 5 selected reimbursements. Agreed the 
reimbursement rate for the 3 selected reimbursements using a per diem rate to 
those rates established by the U.S. General Services Administration. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Performance: Actual costs were used for 2 of the 5 selected reimbursements. Observed 
that the 2 reimbursements using actual cost were supported by an original iteinized 
receipt that identified precisely what was purchased. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by docuinentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy procedures 
#1A(vii). 

Performance: Observed that each reimbursement was supported by documentation of 
the business/public purpose (for meal charges, observed that the documentation 
included the names of those individuals participating) and other docuinentation 
required by written policy procedure #1A(vii). 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that each reimburseinent was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving the reimbursement. 

Performance: Observed that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in 
writing, by someone other than the person that received the reimbursement. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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8. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Contracts: 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed 
during the fiscal period. Obtain management's representation in a separate letter that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the 
listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

Perforrnance: Obtained a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or 
renewed during the fiscal period, and received management's representation in a 
separate letter that the listing is complete. Selected 5 contracts for testing. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

i. Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Performance: Observed that the contracts selected did not require the bids to be in 
accordance with Louisiana Public Bid Law. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

Performance: Observed that the contracts selected did not require Board approval. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terrns 
provided for such an amendment and that the amendments were made in compliance with 
the contract terms. 

Performance: Observed that the contracts selected were not amended. 
Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain 
the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the 
invoice and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Performance: Obtained supporting invoices, agreed invoices to the contract terms, and 
observed invoices related to the payment agreed to terms and conditions of the 
contract. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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9. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Payroll and Personnel: 

A. Obtain a listing of employees employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the 
personnel files. 

Performance: Obtained a listing of employees employed during the fiscal period from 
rnanagernent, and received managernent's representation in a separate letter that the 
listing is complete. Selected 5 ernployees, obtained related paid salaries and personnel 
files, and agreed paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. Randornly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 ernployees selected under 
procedure #9A, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

i. Observe that all selected employees docurnented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory). 

Performance: Randomly selected one pay period to test attendance and/or leave taken 
during that period. Inspected daily attendance and leave record for proper 
documentation. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected 
employees. 

Performance: Observed that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the 
selected employees. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the 
Organization's cumulative leave records. 

Performance: Observed that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period was 
reflected in the cumulative leave records. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that the rate paid to the ernployees agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

Performance: Agreed the pay rates to authorized salary/pay rates maintained in 
employee files. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 
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9.  Procedures Performed on the Organization's Payroll and Personnel: (Continued) 

C. Obtain a hsting of those einployees that received termination payinents during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select 2 
employees and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations and the Organization's policy on 
tennination payments. Agree the hours to the employees' cumulative leave records and agree 
the pay rates to the ernployees' authorized pay rates in the employees' personnel files and 
agree the termination payments to the Organization's policy. 

Performance: Inquired of management of those employees that the Organization 
terminated during the fiscal period. Selected 2 employees who were terminated with 
payouts of accrued leave. Traced calculations of payout to leave schedule and 
approved pay rate. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, 
retirement contributions, health insurance premiums. ganiislunents. and workers' 
compensation premiums have been paid, and any associated ibrms have heen filed, by 
required deadlines. 

Performance: Obtained management's representation that employer and employee 
portions of third-party payroll related amounts have been paid. and any associated 
forms have been filed by the required deadlines. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

1(1. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Ethics: 

A. Using the 5 selected employees from Payroll and Personnel procedure 49A obtain ethics 
compliance documentation from management and: 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee coinpleted one hour of 
ethics training during the period as required by R.S. 42:1 170. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

ii. Observe whether the Organization maintains documentation which deinonstrates each 
employee was notitied of any changes to the Organization's ethics policy during the fiscal 
period, as applicable. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

B. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by 
R.S. 42:117(). 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 
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11. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Debt Service: 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all deht instruments on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each deht instrument issued as recpired by Article VII, Section 8 of the 
Louisiana Constitution. 

Not applicahle for not-for-profit entities. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt 
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve halance and payments, and agree 
actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

12. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Fraud Notice: 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation. aiid observe that the Organization reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which 
the Organization is domiciled as required by R.S. 24:523. 

Performance: Inquired of management of any misappropriations of public funds and 
assets during the fiscal period and obtained management's representation in a separate 
letter., iioiie were noted. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

B. Observe the Organization has posted on its premises and website the notice required hy R.S. 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public 
funds. 

Performance: Lnspected the fraud notice posted on the premises and website concerning 
the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of puhlic funds. 

Exceptions: There were no exceptions noted. 

13. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Information Technology Disaster Recovery/ 
Business Continuit : 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and 
report "We performed the procedure and discussed the results with managemene'. 

i. Obtain and inspect the Organization's most recent docuinentation that it has backed up 
its critical data (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing 
up critical data) and observe that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was 
not stored on the Organization's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted. 

Performance: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with 
management. 
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13. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Information f echnology Disaster Recovery/ 
Business Continuity: (Continued) 

ii. Obtain and inspect the Organization's most recent documentation that it has 
tested/verified that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation. inquire of 
personnel responsible for testingiverifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that 
the testiverification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

Performance: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with 
rnanagernent. 

iii. Obtain a listing of the Organization's computers currently in use and their related 
locations, and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 
5 cornputers and observe while management dernonstrates that the selected cornputers 
have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting 
system software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

Performance: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with 
management. 

B. Randomly select 5 terininated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using 
the list of terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. C)hserve evidence tliat the 
selected terminated ernployees have been rernoved or disabled frorn the network. 

Performance: We perforined the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

C. Randomly select 5 employees from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtained 
cybersecurity training docurnentation from rnanagernent, and observed that the 
docurnentation demonstrates that the employees with access to the Organization's 
information technology assets have completed cybersecurity training as required hy R.S. 
42:1267 

Performance: We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

14. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Prey ention of Sexual Harassment: 

A. Using the 5 randornly selected ernployees frorn procedure #9A under "Procedures Performed 
on the Organization's Payroll and Personnel", ohtain sexual harassinent training 
documentation from management, and observe the documentation demonstrates each 
ernployee cornpleted at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year 
as required by R.S. 42:343. 

Not applicable thr not-for-protit entities. 

B. Obsenie the Organization has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure 
on its wehsite (or in a conspicuous location on the Organization's prernises if the 
Organization does not have a website). 

Not applicable thr not-for-protit entities. 
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14. Procedures Performed on the Organization's Prevention of Sexual Harassment: 
(Continued) 

C. Obtain the Organization's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, 
observe that the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the 
applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the Organization who have completed the 
training requirements. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the Organization. 
Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred. 
Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action. 

Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 
Not applicable for not-for-profit entities. 

Management's Overall Response to Exceptions: 

4.D.iv. One deposit over $100 was not made within one business day. 
Management's Response: Management will ensure that all deposits are made 
within one business day. 
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